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(2:15 p.m)

M5. PETERS: Good afternoon, and wel conme
to Stanford University Law School. We'IlIl be hearing
from one panel this afternoon, and we'll begin again
tonorrow at 9:30 in the norning to hear two panels
t hroughout the course of the day. The schedule for
the Stanford hearings is available today outside,
and it's al so posted on our website.

First of all, 1'd like to thank Stanford
University Law School for agreeing to host these
hearings, and in particular we thank Professors Hank
G eely and Paul Coldstein and Julie Viner, the Law
School's Director for Special Events for all their
assistance. W're very pleased to be here and we're
grateful to the university and | aw school for making
these facilities available to us.

As you probably know, these hearings are
part of the ongoing rul emaking process nandated by
the Congress under Section 1201(a)(1l) of Title 17 of
the United States Code. Section 1201 was enacted in

1998 as part of the Digital MIIennium Copyright
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Act . And | look out and see there are sone people
who are not too thrilled about this Act.

Nevert hel ess, it is in force, and
Section 1201(a) provides that no person shall
circumvent a technol ogical neasure that effectively
controls access to a copyrighted work. However, this
prohibition does not go into effect until Cctober
28th of this year, which is two years after the DMCA
went into effect.

Secti on 1201(a) provi des for this
rulemaking in which it's the Librarian of Congress
who nay exenpt certain classes of works from the
prohi bition against circunvention of technol ogical
neasures that control access to copyrighted works.

The purpose of the rul emaki ng proceeding
is to determ ne whether there are particul ar classes
of works as to which users are, or are likely to be,
adversely affected in their ability to mnake non-
infringing uses if they are prohibited from
ci rcunventing technol ogi cal access control neasures.

Pur suant to the Copyright Ofice's

Notice of Inquiry, which was published in the
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Federal Register on Novenber 24, 1999, we received
235 Initial Coments and 129 Reply Conmments, all of
which are available for viewi ng and downl oading on
our website.

Two weeks ago, we conducted a first
round of hearings at the Library of Congress in
Washi ngton. After the hearings here at Stanford, we
will accept a final round of post-hearing comrents.
These post-hearing coments are due on Friday, June
23rd. In order to allow interested parties adequate
time to respond to the hearing testinony, we intend
to post the transcript of all hearings on our
website as soon as the transcripts are available.
W are also recording the testinony for stream ng
and possi ble downl oading from the Ofice's website.
The audio files fromthe hearings at the Library of
Congress are currently avail able on our website.

The transcripts will also be posted on
the website as originally transcribed, but obviously
everybody who testifies will have an opportunity to
correct any errors in these transcripts. Wen those

corrections are received, we will put the corrected
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transcripts on the website.

Those of you who are here to testify
have al ready been advised that we intend to put the
recording and transcripts on the website, and by
your appearance here we understand that you have
consented for us to do this. W are also putting
witten statenments of testinony submtted on the
Ofice's website until the transcripts are posted.

The Conmments, Reply Comments, Hearing
Testinony and Post-Hearing Coments wll form the
basis of evidence for ny recomendation to the
Li brarian  of Congr ess. Before nmaking that
recommendation, | am to consult with the Assistant
Secretary of Communications and Information of the
Departnment of Commerce. W have al ready begun these
consultations and expect to have nore discussions
with the agency that the Assistant Secretary heads -
- which is NTIA the National Tel econmunications and
I nf ormati on Adm ni strati on.

After receiving ny recomendation the
Librarian will determ ne by Cctober 28, which is the

deadl i ne, whether or not there are any classes of
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works that shall be exenpted from the prohibition
agai nst circunvention of access control neasures
during the three years that wll begin on QCctober
28th in the year 2000 forward.

It is clear fromthe legislative history
that this rulemaking proceeding is to focus on
"distinct, wverifiable and neasurable inpacts.”
|solated or de mnims effects, speculation or
conjecture, and nere inconvenience do not rise to
the requisite |level of proof. Any reconmendati ons
for exenptions nust be based on specific inpacts on
particul ar cl asses of works.

The panel wll be asking sone tough
questions of the participants in an effort to define
the issues. W stress that both sides will receive
difficult questions, and none of the questions
should be seen as expressing a particular view by
t he panel. This is an ongoing proceeding, and no
deci si ons have been nade yet.

The purpose of these hearings is to
further refine the issues and get the evidence that

we need from both sides. In an effort to obtain al
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rel evant evidence, the Ofice reserves the right to
ask questions in witing of any participant in these
proceedings after the close of the hearings. Any
such witten questions asked and answers received
wi || be posted on our website.

What 1'd like to do now is introduce our
panel. To ny imediate left is David Carson, who's
the General Counsel of the Copyright Ofice. To ny
imediate right is Charlotte Douglass, who 1is
Principal Legal Advisor to the General Counsel. To
David's left is Rachel Goslins, who's an Attorney
Advisor in our Ofice of Policy and International
Affairs. And to Charlotte's is Rob Kasunic, who is
a Senior Attorney in the Ofice of the GCeneral
Counsel .

W're about to begin. And we have been
asked by our Reporter if any of the wtnesses have
witten statenents that they will be reading from
it would help them trenendously if you could give
them a copy of your witten statenent.

| see the panel is actually already in

pl ace, and | have received your order of preference.
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So we will start with you, Dr. Siva Vai dhyanat han -

-1 can't say it.

t her e.

Coyl e,

DR. VAl DHYANATHAN:  Vai dhyanat han.

M5. PETERS: Vai dhyanat han.

DR VAl DHYANATHAN: You were getting
You woul d have been fine.

M5. PETERS: And then we'll go to Karen

who wll represent the California Digital

Library. And then we'll go to the American Library

Associ

have

ation, with Linda Cowe. And finally, we'll

Laura Gasaway, who wll be representing the

Ameri can Associ ation of Uni versities, and the

American Council on Education, and the National
Association of State Universities and Land G ant
Col | eges.

Ckay, it's yours.

DR VAl DHYANATHAN: Good afternoon. \%%
nane is Siva Vaidhyanathan. I"'m a nedia studies
schol ar and cultural historian at New  York
Uni versity. Thank you for allowing nme to testify
today. | amnot a lawer or a law professor. | am
not a librarian. | am a user, a reader, a teacher,
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a researcher and a citizen. Wrse than that, |I'm an
unaut horized user. | ama fair user

"' m deeply concerned about the potentia
harm the anticircunvention power of the Dgita
M | I ennium Copyright Act will have on nedia studies
and schol arship in general. | am just as concerned
about the effects that this energing |eak-proof,
highly regulated electronic regine could have on
Anerican culture and deli berative denocracy.

Today, nost of the subjects of nedia
studies research are w dely accessible. A handf ul
of works of film and early radio are even in the
public domain. So scholars and teachers benefit
from anpl e and easy sources. But that m ght change
over the next few decades as nore works -- even
those already in the public domain -- Dbecone
encl osed behind electronic |locks and gates, and
delivered in streans of digital signals. The
potential for abuse of this technology and the |ega
power behind it is imense.

You will notice that nost of the tenses

| amenploying in this testinony are subjunctive and
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conditional. As you may have gathered from all the
previous testinony on this issue, this law has
caused little harm yet, save the immeasurable and
undocunentable chilling effect it mght have had on
those frightened by the conbined cultural power of
nmedi a conpani es and the state.

Yes, ny fears are speculative and

al arm st. But they are not out | andi sh  nor
i nconcei vabl e. Not every nedia conpany is as
harm ess as a nouse. Not every government s

invested in the free flow of ideas and information.

Call me Cassandra if you nust, but
pl ease i magi ne ny classroom 35 years fromnow. As |
do every senester, | plan to show ny class a film
that explores conflicting values and loyalties
during wartine: Casabl anca. But sonetine during
the 2020s, all the VEH CLES players at New York
University fell into disrepair.

The library has the tape, but nothing to
play it on. Kims Video Store on Bl eecker Street is
now just a Starbucks. Bl ockbuster is now a hand-

held device instead of a large store. The only
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means for showing this filmto ny class is to have
it streamlined in via satellite feed into a video
proj ector.

Casabl anca woul d have entered the public
domai n the previous year, assum ng Congress does not
extend the term once again. But it remains well
protected, "double-wapped" by both "click-wap"

contract and technol ogi cal access controls.

So ny class settles down. Oh ny palm
computer | <call up the interface page for either
vi a- D sney- AQL- Wr ner - Mount or it's conpetitor
M cr oFox. | enter ny "educator's code." | hit

"play." Nothing happens. Once again, | nust do ny
poor Bogart inpression for the class in lieu of this
film

So what happened? Wl l, perhaps this
was ny second class of the day and the service
bl ocks fair wusers from watching a film tw ce.
Perhaps the NyU Library could not negotiate a
contract renewal with the conpany and stay wthin
its tight budget. Perhaps ny "educator's code"

revealed ne to be the one who wote that scathing
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review of the major summer blockbuster of 2034,

Battlefield Earth IX The Psychlo's Revenge.

Perhaps the conpany identified nme as soneone who
testified against the industry at a Copyright Ofice
heari ng way back in May of 2000.

The Digital MIllennium Copyright Act
grants conplete power to allow or deny access to a
work with the producer or publisher of that work.
The producer may prohibit access for those users who
m ght have hostile intentions toward the work. This
power could exclude critics and scholars. Most
likely it would exclude parodists and satirists as
wel | .

The anticircunvention provision shifts
the burden of negotiating fair use from the user,
and the courts in the case of likely infringenent,
to the producer. The producer has no incentive to
grant access to any user who mght exploit the work
for fair wuse -- including scholarship, teaching,
comentary or parody. Under this reginme, a user
nmust agree to terns of contract with a nonopolistic

provi der before gaining access. One nust apply to
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read, listen or watch.

But why would a conpany restrict access
to its product? In his testinony at these hearings
in Washington, D.C., Bernard Sorkin, senior counsel
for AQL-Tinme-Warner asserted that the content
industries "cannot exist and prosper by barring
their works from public availability,”™ and any such
fear "flies in the face of economc logic."

Sorkin would be correct if his industry
were perfectly conpetitive. But the very economc
basis of copyright is that we need a state-granted
limted nonopoly to create artificial scarcity where
natural scarcity could not exist. Once the content
industry has a perfect, technological nonopoly on
hi gh- demand back-catalog filns such as "Casabl anca, "
the industry has an incentive to limt the nunber of
times it could be shown for free. Restricting free
and "fair" use bolsters nonopolistic pricing power.
And conpanies have great incentive to restrict
harsh critics and parodists from viewng their
filmns.

| am very concerned that the Librarian
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of Congress is entrusted wth conposing a list of
"classes of works" that mght be exenpted from the
anticircunvention provision. As soneone whose work
spans from Twain to 2 Live Crew, and includes such
sources as |eqgal docunent s, private letters,
diaries, novie soundtracks, and television and film
| have serious m sgivings about a governnment agency
al l owi ng greater access to some works over others.

All elements of expressive culture are
fair ganme for scholarship -- at least they are today
and for a little while. |If any categories of works
shoul d be exenpted from the provision, then all of
t hem shoul d. The Librarian of Congress should not
have the power to favor one type or subject of
schol arshi p over anot her.

But as Arnold Lutzker testified at your
hearings in Washington, D.C., "classes of works" are
not "categories of wor ks. " Privileging one
"category of work" mght let you exenpt literary or
scientific work but not nusic or film And | assune
that the Librarian of Congress recognizes this

di stinction and plans to execute his power based on
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Any pr oposal t hat l'ibraries and
l'ibrarians enjoy sone sort of special exenption from
the legal threat inherent in the DMCA would not
satisfy ny concerns. First, libraries are not users
per se, and nmuch scholarship occurs outside of
libraries. Second, such a nove would turn
librarians into "copyright cops,” who would be
entrusted to determ ne which uses would be fair and
whi ch woul d not .

Fair use is sonething | as a user nust
be willing to enploy without having to apply for it.
Al fair use is unauthorized. |[|f a content conpany
has a problemwith ny use, bring it on, let's go to
court. But let's not involve a third party in the
di spute, either by requiring her to preenpt ny use
or by threatening her wth Jliability for any
infringing use | mght nake.

Copyright was invented in the British
Isles as an instrunment of censorship, a way of
regulating the traffic of ideas through the

selective granting of | i censes. Fortunately,
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copyright has grown in the American context as
sonmething very different. Up until a few years ago,
when it still enbodied a balance anbng creators,
publishers and users, copyright served as an
essential foundation of denocratic culture. Its
very inperfections helped Anerican «culture and
comerce thrive in the past 200 years.

American users have benefitted from the
proliferation of American cultural products, but
they have also enjoyed four inportant safety-valves
against the censorious power of copyright: t he
first sale doctrine; fair use; allowances for
private non- conmer ci al copyi ng; and t he
i dea/ expression dichotony which allows facts and
ideas to flow freely while protecting specific
di spl ays of those ideas.

Now, all four of these notions are under
attack by the content industries through the Wrld
Intell ectual Property Oganization treaties. The
DMCA is only the first step of this process.

| f the film and nusic industries

continue to tighten their reins on use and access,
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they wll strangle the public domain and the
i nformati on comons. This trend presents a nuch
greater threat to American culture than just a
chilling effect on scholarship. Shrinking the
information and cultural commobns starves the public
sphere of elenents of discourse, the raw materi al
for decision nmaking, creativity and hunor.

So  what should we do about this
pernicious trend? How can we revive the beauty and
genius of the American copyright system and naintain
its positive externalities on our culture and
denocr acy?

Vell, for a start: the Librarian of
Congress should exercise his power to exenpt from
the anticircunvention prohibition any works that are
not weasily and wdely available for teaching,
research and unauthorized reading in an unsecured
format. Unsecured formats m ght i nclude VHS

vi deot apes, printed paper volumes or standard

conmpact di scs. That neans these products nust be
archived in a public or university library
somewher e.
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Second, the Librarian of Congress should
ensure that the anticircunvention prohibition does
not apply in any case to material not covered by
Title 107, the Copyright Act. Ther ef or e, a
publisher could not stifle access to works in the
public donmain, to governnent docunents, or facts, or
i deas or dat a.

Third, the Librarian should exenpt any
works that enjoy technological controls that deny
access based on editorial concerns. There are no
bad readers, authorized or not.

But ultimately, the Librarian's actions
-- even if he provides as broad an exenption as
possible -- will do little or nothing to restore the
sense of public interest to copyright law. It would
only be an endorsenent of that value. Congress has
granted the Librarian the power to exenpt the use of
certain classes of works from prosecution, but not
to exenpt the sale and distribution of the very
anticircunvention technologies and devices that we
users would require to exercise our rights in such

an environnent.
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That's like granting us the right to
record television shows for Jlater viewng, but
prohibiting the sale of video recorders. It's like
havi ng freedom of the press, but not the freedom to
own a press. Congress should revisit this issue. |
trust Congress would recognize the value of an
inperfectly regul ated yet bal anced copyright system

The Digital MIIennium Copyright Act is

an absurd, Owellian | aw, and it should be

abandoned. | f Congress does not fix it, | hope the
US Suprenme Court -- which several tinmes in the
1990s stood up for users' rights -- would once again

rescue our copyright system from those who would

corrupt it.

On one final note, | offer an anecdote
that should illustrate the value of unauthorized
use. In Decenber of 1906, Mark Twain donned his

white suit to testify before a congressional
commttee on the new copyright bill. Twai n
expressed his desire for copyright to be expanded
from nmere expressions to ideas as well, and to be

extended in perpetuity.
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Whil e Twain described the very copyright
regine we seemto have built in his absence, a young
actor in New York was busy reading a short story by
Twain called, "The Death D sk," a fable set in the
time of Ctomell's rule of England. The young actor
made unauthorized use of Twain's story -- which
Twain hinmself had lifted from Thomas Carlyle -- to
make a short silent film in 1909 for the Anerican
Mut oscope and Bi ograph Conpany. In his short filns,
this enterprising young man worked out the technica
chal  enges of narrative filmuaking. That man's nane
was David Wark Griffin, the father of American film

Thank you.

M5. PETERS: Thank you. Next Karen.

MS. COYLE: CGood afternoon. My nane is
Karen Coyle and | hold the position of Information
Technol ogy Specialist with the California D gital
Library at the University of California. And |'m
here to speak to you as a practitioner of library
technol ogy, not in any way as an expert in law. And
| nust say that what | say here are ny own words.

This is not policy of the University of California.
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| should give you a little bit of an
idea of ny expertise and what | have been working
on. The California Digital Library serves all nine
University of California canpuses. VW have an
online union catalog of about 10 mllion titles, and
about 18 mllion holdings. W have available online
66 abstracting and indexing databases for our users,
and we have eight of those we've actually nounted on
our own conputers. W provide our users with access
to over 4,500 electronic journals and other digita
wor ks.

My own expertise is primarily in the
devel opnent of databases, and | estinated the other
day that | have probably overseen the devel opnent of
databases and the loading of about 50 mllion
bi bl i ographi ¢ records.

Because there isn't a great deal of

time, | chose three of the questions that were in
your original call for coments here. And | wll
just answer those. Al three of them have to do

wi th technol ogy.

The first one is No. 2, "Do Different
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Technol ogi cal Measures Have Different Effects on the
Ability of Users to Make Non-Infringing Uses?" And
| had a very interesting experience just this week.

You may know that Xerox and M crosoft
recently announced that they were going to becone
content providers. And along with this, they have
their own access control standard called XrM.. And
since this is part of nmy job, I tend to follow these
standards, so | went out to the site to download it.

In order to read it, | had to also download a

speci al version of Adobe Acrobat, and | had to give
ny e-mail address so that | could be sent the key so
that | could open up the docunent.

| did this. Opened the docunent, it was
117 pages. | closed it and decided I'd look at it
another day. It so happens that in ny office | have
two conputers, and they're connected together and I
store everything on basically a shared vol une. And
as far as |I'm concerned, they're just two w ndows
into ny work space.

So, earlier this wek |I got a chance to

open up that docunment again, and | went to one of ny
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conmputers and went to open it up. And | got an
error nmessage. | realized it was the other conputer
and | hadn't downl oaded the right version of Adobe
Acr obat . | downl oaded the right version of Adobe
Acrobat, |'m still getting a rather cryptic error
nessage.

And it took ne a few tries, but after a
while | basically deduced that this docunent can
only be opened on the conputer where it was
downl oaded. Well, | decided to go back and read the
legal "I agree" agreenent, which of course | hadn't
read the first tine. None of us ever do. And there
was no nention in there of access controls at all

So | went back to the web page where |

downl oaded it, and there was no nention of access

controls. On Tuesday | went to the XrM. site and
said, "It looks to nme like this is |limted to just
one CPU. Is this the case?" And as of this norning
I still haven' t gotten an answer from the
devel opers.

There are tw sort of i nteresting
technol ogi cal aspects to this. One is that access
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controls may be invisible to the user. And these
were definitely invisible to ne. | knew that the
access control had to do with Adobe Acrobat, that |
had to have a key. But there was nothing telling ne
that this was only readable on a single conputer.

The other interesting aspect is that the

access control and the license may not be the sane.

Now, | can't find, really anywhere, a |icense that
says what ny license is in relation to this
docunent . The license really has to do wth
relation to what | would develop using the XrM
st andar d.

But interestingly enough, the docunent
seens to be licensed to ne. They asked for ny nane,
ny address -- that had to be filled in -- ny e-nail
addr ess. And yet the access is limted to an
i nanimate object on ny desk, which is of a very
temporary nature. Because as we know, conputers get
upgraded every three to five years. This one's four
years old, it won't be around very | ong. | assune
that when | wupgrade ny conputer equipnent, |'m not

going to be able to read this file.
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Now, when you make this question about
"Do Different Technol ogi cal Measures Have Different
Effects?" the answer is yes. But when | sat down to
try to think of all the different technol ogical
neasures and all the possible effects, | realized
that this is going to take a really serious study.
| don't think we really know what all the effects

are, and sone of them are hidden, sonme of them

aren't obvi ous. | really think that what we
need for this technology is sonething that | like to
call a social inpact study. That when new

technol ogy conmes up, that sonmeone needs to | ook at
it in terns of not just what does the technol ogy do,
but what's the inpact it's going to have on society?

And | turn to you, because at the nonent
| don't know of any other agency that mght be in a
position to bring together a group of technol ogists,
or sonmehow charter an investigation of this nature.
O really learning what the controls are and what
the inpact they have on access. Because | don't
think that we have an answer for that today.

The next question that | wanted to | ook
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at was the one that says if there are works that are
avai lable, both in basically digital copy and hard
copy, is the availability of the hard copy
essentially make it so that access to the digital
copy isn't as inportant.

And here | speak from experience that
we've had in devel oping conputer systens over about
20 years. Because | started in 1980 wth the
University of California on these systens. I
menti oned that we have sort of eight core databases
that are on our system One of them is National
Library of Medicine's Mdline, which we nade
available 12 or nore years ago, obviously to serve
our medical and biol ogy research staff and students.

There is a paper equival ent | ndex Medicus.

Wien we nade it available we were very
surprised by the amount of use, and we continue to
be surprised by the anount of use. Thi s dat abase
accounts for about 30 percent of the use on our
system anongst these core databases. This is quite
a surprise. There have been tines when it actually

rival ed the use of the online catal og.
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| can't explain it, no one else |I know
can explain it. But what we do know is that by
making information available digitally, we aren't
giving the sane access that we gave in the paper
copy. And that our users are finding new ways to
make use of the information, and are discovering new
i nformati on.

And | think we all know that when you
search in a database you have the ability to
di scover information that you m ght not have
di scovered in the hard copy work. Because the
ability to search is so nuch better.

The exciting thing about working in
digital libraries is that we're really developing a
new kind of scholarship, and it is different to the
schol arship that took place in the paper world. And
| don't think we'd want to go backwards to that
paper scholarship, and pretty soon we really won't
be able to.

And then the last question that | wanted
to address--down here, it's No. 18: "I'n What Ways

Can Technol ogi cal Measures That Effectively Control
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Access To Copyright Wrks Be G rcunvented, and How
Wdespread Is Such G rcunvention?” Wll, | do not
know of any library that has a job title
Li brarian/ Cryptographer. W really -- we don't have
cryptographers on our staffs. | don't expect us to
have themin the near future.

| was thinking about the other day that
-- | believe it was last year or the year before
the Electronic Frontier Foundation did a crypto-
experinent in which they spent about a vyear --
actually, a little over a year -- building a specia
conputer to the tune of about $250,000 so that they
could experinment with breaking through 56-bit DES
encryption.

And apparently -- John Glnore just told
me that it actually took 56 hours. And then once
they had that conmputer built to do it, and it's just
coincidence that it's the same nunber as the nunber
of bits.

Clearly, it is not really economcal in
nost cases for a library to wuse this type of

technology in order to gain access to works.
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Encryption really is a question of economcs, and
the cryptographers will always tell you there is no
unbr eakabl e encryption. There's just encryption
that it's too expensive to break for what you're
going to get out of it.

| can't imagine libraries having the
ability to break through strong copy controls. And
| think that this is, in a way, unfortunate because
| am quite convinced that we wll |ose sonme works.
If a library does find that it needs to invest its
time and resources in trying to free a work in order
to make it available to the public, | feel they are
doing a great public service and we should support
them in that. It is not sonething that | can see
that any library is going to undertake idly.

| don't have a recommendation for you as
to what the wording should be, in terns of what
exenptions there should be for libraries, because |
couldn't begin to speak that I anguage. And | wil
let the lawers do that for ne. But thank you very
much. M5. CRONE: (Good afternoon. |

guess I'm going to start with the disclainer, since
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I"m far from a copyright expert. This testinmony is
short and, | hope, to the point.
M/ nane is Linda Cowe, and |I'm the

Director of the Bay Area Library and Information
System the Peninsula Library System and the Silicon
Valley Library System Each is a consortium of
public libraries covering the core of the Bay Area,
including all the public libraries in the counties
in al phabetical order: Al aneda, Contra Costa, San
Franci sco, San Mateo and Santa d ara.

The service area consists of 25
i ndividual jurisdictions, and over 175 outlets or
main |libraries and branches. All of these outlets
have public access to electronic resources. Sone
with only a single termnal and sone with nore than
100 termnals open for public use. And they are in
use fromthe tine the library opens until it closes.

Public libraries see thenselves playing
a critical role in providing accurate access to
i nformation. And it's particularly inportant that
new technol ogies support and enhance, not i npede,

the ability of public libraries to provide these
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servi ces. Many consi der t he public
library as the public transportation to the Internet
or the superhighway. And | suppose that is sonmewhat
descriptive of their role. Much has been nade of
the digital divide in this state and throughout the
country. The area that the Ilibraries we serve
represent, one, if not the nost wired area in the
country. Yet, there are information haves and have-
nots, and the digital divide is as real here as
anywher e el se.

Wiere else can nmany teenagers who |ive
in East Palo Alto, just down the road, parts of West
Cakl and or Bayview Hunter's Point go to access the
resources he or she needs to conplete a homework
assignnent, or do research on a subject of persona
interest?

As three consortias, we are spending

nmore and nore scarce dollars on resources in

el ectronic fornmats. For exanple, this fiscal year
we will spend close to $1.5 mllion on electronic
dat abases. Next year we w Il probably spend nore

and we are constantly trying to neet requests for
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peopl e who want nore and need nore.

W need to be able to assure our users
that within the limts of fair use, that the people
who need themwill have them available. | nentioned
the digital divide, and that public libraries nmay be
the only place sone people may be able to use these
resour ces.

W also find that nore and nore people
who have access to the Internet elsewhere, cone to
the public libraries Bbecause |Ilibrarians have
organi zed the information and can help access what
the wuser really needs nore quickly and nore
effectively.

These users need research done in
whatever format is avail able. And public libraries
need to be able to supply these formats wthout
undue technol ogical constraints, costs or charges.
At this point, nost public libraries are not talking
at neetings nmuch about the DMCA, copyright and fair
use because they have lived and accepted the
principles that they' ve had for years.

Now, we have this broad new |aw that
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confuses and concerns us, because of the anbiguity
and apparent contradiction. On one hand we have the
anticircunvention section 1201, and on the other
hand -- as | understand it -- we have the provision

to 21201 that says, "nothing in this section shall

affect rights, renedies, limtations or defenses to
copyright infringenent, including fair use under
this title."

W need a precise, a clear precise sense
of what is and is not proper, SO we can exercise
those rights. Wthout this preciseness we are
likely to err on the side of caution, possibly
restricting access to information to those who need
it, and denying them the rights to use it in ways
that are |egal under current copyright |aw.

| would urge the Librarian to issue
exenptions that protect the rights of content
owners, but allow us to serve our public. That is,
t he peopl e who use and depend on public |ibraries.

Thank you.

M5, GASAWAY:. Cood afternoon. My nane

is Laura Gasaway. I'"'m here today on behalf of the
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Association of American Universities, the Nationa
Association of State Universities and Land-G ant
Col | eges, and the American Council on Education.
Thank you so much for the opportunity to appear
bef ore you.

Il will rmake four points today. First,
an exam nation of the purpose of today's hearings.
Second, our experience to date with access controls
and their first cousins, license restrictions.
Third, how the proposed business nodels presented by
copyright holders will interfere with the use of
copyrighted works in teaching, |earning, scholarship
and research. And lastly, what this neans for your
task in the rul emaki ng proceedi ng.

The bottomline for us is exenpting from
the realm of prohibition on circunventing conduct
any uses for which the wuser had lawful initial

access. Further, we believe two types of works that

were identified in our opening statenent -- fair use
works and thin copyrights -- are particularly
vul nerabl e. And equities are stronger toward

exenpting them
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Congr ess was concer ned t hat t he
possibility of technological protection neasures,
TPMs, would be applied by copyright owners in ways
that interfered with lawful uses of copyrighted
wor ks. Ways that upset the copyright bal ance that
has | ong served owners and users of protected works.

You' ve heard copyright holders in these
hearings state that their future economc health
wll be conpletely conpromsed if there is an
exenption for their works. Nothing could be further
from the truth. The risk to copyright holders is
negl i gi bl e.

Nothing in this rulenmaking affects the
availability of the prohibitions contained in
Sections 1201(a)(2) and 1201(b). For exanple, the
manufacture and distribution of ci rcunventing
devices and the performance of ci rcunventing
servi ces. Nor wll any copyright remedies for
i nfringenent be exenpted. In any case of
i nfringenment Section 1201(a)(1) is redundant.

Moreover, nothing in this rul emaking

will stop copyright holders from applying TPMs. The
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question is whether we invoke federal courts to
reinforce anticircunventi on. Addi tional ly,
contractual rights will continue to apply.

Qur experience wth access controls to
date, whether technological protection neasures or
i censing, have been varied. W, of course, have
had much nore experience with licensing than TPMs to
dat e. Most  of our experience has
been with passwords, which are the kind of basic or
primary access control technology that does not
cause us concern. In fact, our own Institutions are
usi ng passwords on web pages, course materials, and
the |i ke that we devel op.

W have also dealt with location
restrictions, especially in license agreenents where
the wuniversity pays a license fee but access is
restricted to on-canpus use. This has been a
problem for us when we're dealing with distance
| earning students, nedical interns and the other
students who are enrolled but who are physically
| ocated elsewhere than the canpus for t hat

particul ar senester. And we've had to deal wth

NEAL R. GROSS
COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS
1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W.
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C. 20005-3701 (202) 234-4433




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

38

aut hentication of those users to create access for
t hem

Soneti mes publishers have not allowed us
to do that. They have restricted access to the
domain nane, regardless of the fact that these were
enrol |l ed students. So they have restricted it to
the place, regardless of the fact that these were
enrol | ed students.

W' ve also seen restrictions on who may

access the material. Usually it is students,
faculty and staff -- pointed out to you by earlier
W tnesses in these hearings. The problens for
st at e- supported Institutions whi ch al so have

responsibility to serve citizens of their area and
their state. I ncreasingly, this is causing
difficulty when we have sole source governnent
information that's enbodied in these electronic
dat abases, et cetera.

Another problem that we've had wth
licensing has been the renoval from databases of
materials during the license period, with no advance

war ni ng. And |I'm specifically referring to the
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renoval of the French legal nmaterials fromthe Lexis
dat abase very recently.

Now, one could certainly argue that
Lexis has violated the |icense agreenment with |aw
schools in doing that, but that's really not our
pur pose here today. Just to point out that these
are the difficulties we've had.

There have al so been l'i censing
restrictions on use, where a particular product
could be used for teaching and denonstration but not
for research. Sonetines |icenses to use have been
deni ed because the copyright holder sees its market
as a non-educational nodel. It just doesn't fit the
use that we asking, so they have refused to |icense
entirely, or even to respond to our request for a
|'i cense.

Today's contractual restrictions are
tonorrow s technol ogical protection neasures. Wth
a license agreenent, however, institutions have had
some ability to negotiate the terns. Wth TPMs, the
ability to negotiate is |ost.

W have had one relevant experience in
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nmy own |library with TPMs and the problens with them

| call these "disappearing CD-Rons." Actually, we
still have the CD-ROM it's the content that's
di sappear ed. Apparently they were date-

sensitive, although this was not included in the
Iicense agreenent, and there was no advance warni ng.
The library was left w th nothing. Thi s happened
to us with Westlaw CD ROMs. The publisher admtted
that it was a mstake and agreed to replace them
But we were several weeks without the material.

So far, publishers have not inplenented
many such controls. But according to their
testinony during these hearings, this is about to
change. The institutions represented by our
organi zations are seriously concerned about what
we've heard from copyright hol ders  at t hese
heari ngs. Clearly, they intend to nerge access and
use controls. The business nodels they discuss nake
it clear.

At what point do access controls and use
controls nerge? One could argue that when a

university acquires access to materials through a
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Iicense agreenent for its enrolled students, and yet
of f-canpus but enrolled students are not permtted
access, this is a type of use control. W paid for
access for these students, but they still cannot use
the material.

The copyright holder is differentiating
between users, all of whom are enrolled students.
Is this access or is this use? W don't know, and
we can't tell when we are liable for such conduct
shoul d we circunvent.

Copyright holders clearly want to mnerge
access and use, as their testinony indicates. They
say they want to keep anyone from breaking into the
bookstore and stealing a book. Wat it seens to ne,
and to us that they are saying is that they want to
stop anyone from breaking into the book, even after
they have lawfully acquired access to the book.

The pay-for-use world that publishers

and producers have discussed at these hearings are

use controls for higher education. Such nerger is
conpl etely inconsistent with the congressional
schene. Congress treated access and
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use controls very differently in the statute, and
the Copyright Ofice should take into account what
copyright holders have said during these hearings
because the risk to users of copyrighted works is
consi der abl e.

The proposed business nobdels presented,
we believe, will interfere wth the use of
copyrighted wor ks for t eachi ng, | ear ni ng,
schol arship and research. Fair use is fundanenta
to educati ng America's students, pr oduci ng
schol arshi p, research and the |ike.

Col l ege and university libraries acquire
copyrighted works by purchase, gift or |icense;
faculty, students and staff then have the right to
use these works for education. How wll an
educational institution be able to function wth
pay-f or-use?

For exanple, the single Ilisten. A
faculty nenber plays the song in class once. The
students then ask to have it repeated because they
didn't quite wunderstand or get enough of the

mat eri al for the educational pur poses. The
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i ndi vidual students then need to |isten additional
times for reinforcenent, or to study for exanms. How
is this going to work for higher education?

W also strongly support the statenents
of library associations concerning the preservation
of digital works. The cultural and scholarly record
is critical for researchers and teachers, and
i ndeed, we believe for society. The nmakers of
sil ent filnms saw them only as wor ks for
entertai nment.

Fortunately, there were libraries that
preserved these works as inportant cultural records.

How nuch poorer would be our wunderstanding of
society, and of early novie-nmaking, had these works
been lost to the world. The sane is true for things
like greeting cards, postcards, old photographs,
advertising posters, things that clearly were not
originally intended for education.

Fifty years from now scholars wll want
to look at the early digital naterials to determne
how the industry devel oped, and what it said about

people's tastes and interests. What scientific

NEAL R. GROSS
COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS
1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W.
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C. 20005-3701 (202) 234-4433




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

44

information was deenmed worthy of distribution in
digital format.

Ohe wtness dismssed archiving of
digital wirks as irrelevant to society. The
Copyright Ofice and the Library of Congress needs
to think hard about turning these decisions on
preservation over to owners with this attitude.

Wth this information, how should the
Copyright Ofice exercise this rulenmaking power?
Congress intended primary controls on access when it
established the distinction between access and use
controls. For that reason, we believe the classes
exenpted fromthe act of anticircunvention should be
those for which the user had Iawful initial access.

In the Acadeny, we do not differentiate
between works for entertainment and works for
teaching, |earning and schol arship. The di scipline
in which they are wused nakes a great deal of
di fference. My colleague from NYU pointed out a
good bit of that.

VW have faculty who study the history of

rock and roll, so how can sound recordings -- works
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originally intended for entertainment -- not be
subject to defeating TPMs in cultural studies,
history, et cetera? The works were intended for
entertainment originally, the use that it's nade of
them in education is quite different. It is for
instruction and research.

Use of these works in the Acadeny has
been fair use for 200 years. There are two classes
of works that probably have greater universal use in
hi gher education than others. In other words, all
di sci pli nes nmake use of these works.

Therefore, these works are those for
which the balance |eans nost heavily for a broad
exenpti on. And the failure to do so wll
significantly hurt teaching, |earning, scholarship,
et cetera.

First of all, fair use works. Wr ks
that due to their nature are likely to be lawfully
used under the fair wuse doctrine. This woul d
i ncl ude, at a mnimm scientific and social
dat abases, textbooks, scholarly journals, academc

nmonogr aphs and treati ses, | aw reports and
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educati onal audi o/ vi sual works.

You should probably also think about
witing a regulation that would exenpt a work not on
this list, but because of its use in a particular
context, it is highly likely the use mght be a fair
use. And an exanple mght be notion pictures in a
filmschool .

The second type of works that we believe
especially needs a broad exenption are factua
works, those wth thin copyrights. Those t hat
contain limted copyrightable subject nmatter, and
are fact-intensive, or that <contain significant
public domain nmaterials.

Exanpl es of these works would be maps,
some databases, histories, statistical reports and
abstracts, encyclopedias, dictionaries, newspapers
and the like. W believe that the exenption you
are considering should be broad for scholarship,
education and libraries.

The United States has the finest
academ c systemin the world. Likew se, we have the

strongest copyright industries. Both have thrived
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under copyright and wth fair use. Responsi bility
falls on your office and this rulemaking to see that
t he bal ance i s preserved.

Thank you.

M5. PETERS: Ckay, thank you. W want
to go to the panel questioning. And the questioner
can ask a person specifically, or can throw it out
to the panel. |If they throwit to the panel, anyone
who feels like junping in and contributing, please
do. And even if a question is directed to an
individual, if another person feels that they have
sonmething to add, please feel free to add and say "I
want to add to that."

W're going to start the questioning
with Rachel CGoslins of the Policy and Internationa
Staff.

M5. GOSLINS: Good afternoon. Thi s
panel is especially valuable and helpful to us
because of all the types of people that we have
technol ogi es before us. Li brari ans, academ ci ans
and users have the nost kind of hands-on experience

of both the works and the technologies that we're
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tal ki ng about .

So ny questions are going to be l|argely
focused on actual problens or conditions that you
experience 1in the course of admnistering your
libraries or teaching your classes.

First, in a way we're relatively |ucky
in this study, because we're asked to | ook at access
control technol ogies, which are probably the ol dest
technol ogies we have around in the relatively young
world of the digital envi ronnent . Passwor d
protection and encryption, | P domain nanes,
protections have been around for a while, and so
there should be sonme backlog of experience wth
t hem

And ny first question is directed to the
whol e panel. Considering that these testifying have
been around for a while, and considering that up
until -- and at the nonment the act of circunventing
them is not illegal, so I'm not asking anybody to
confess to anything. Are there tinmes or situations
in your day-to-day businesses where you have to

circumvent these kind of protections or forego the
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use of work?

DR, VAI DHYANATHAN: There are exanples

where | would like to circunvent, but it doesn't
mean | either have or have been able to. For
I nst ance, I use Lexis/Nexis rampantly in ny
resear ch. And |I'm licensed through New York

University Library to read Lexis/Nexis database
information from ny |P address on ny university-
i ssued conputer. But when | travel, | can't.

| wish I could. I wish | could have
access to that, but once again the license is sort
of conputer-specific, or machine-specific as opposed
to licensing the access to ne as a schol ar.

M5. GOSLINS: And what is it, exactly,
t hat prohibits you from circunventing t hese
control s?

DR, VAI DHYANATHAN. Wl |, because the IP
address allows the server to let ne into that
particular page. It's what checks whether |'m okay.

M5. GOSLI NS: So in this case, it's the
t echnol ogy? It's not the lack or existence of a

I egal prohibition in doing so, it's just that the
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technology is effective?

DR, VAI DHYANATHAN: Ri ght.

VS. QGOSLI NS: Are t here ot her
experiences that people have had?

M5. COYLE: | think that describes nost

of our experience, which is that in things like IP

address checking we have vendors who |imt -- nost
our vendors, actual ly, limt to certain |IP
addr esses. And it's not that our wusers or our
librarians wouldn't sonetinmes |like to get around

that. But nost people don't know how.

So the technology is actually effective.

And | think that's why we don't have a |lot of
experience in trying to circunvent controls. Sone
of them virtually cannot be circunvented. |  mean,
it can be very difficult. The econony of

circunventing these controls is really prohibitive.
M5. GOSLINS: That's actually a point |
wanted to pick up on.
M5. PETERS: May | comment on this?
Waich is, you said that the control cane about wth

regard to your contract, your |icense. So,
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actually, | guess your university signed a |icense
that binds its enployees. So is your conplaint
against the license, or is it the license plus the
t echnol ogy?

DR VAI DHYANATHAN: It's the license plus

the technology. | nean, one requires the other.
M5. GOSLINS: 1'd like to pick up on M.
Coyle's point. But before doing that, |I'd just like

to make sure nobody else on the panel has exanples
of times that they have to circunvent.

M5. GASAWAY: There have been tines that
we' ve had to circunvent, specifically with |icense
to --

M5. GOSLINS: Arrest her.

(Laughter.)

M5. GASAVAY: Specifically with license
to Westlaw, and Lexis because we're under the |aw
school contract for each individual's persona
passwor d. You know, if sonmeone conmes in off the
street with a reference question, but not for |aw
practice. It's for a general question.

If we then use our own passwords for
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that, in a way we are circunventing. Not letting
them do it, but to answer a reference question for
t hem And we have done that on occasion, sinply
because that's the only access that we have to sone
of the material. Now we can't answer that French
| egal question that they were going to ask, period.

V5. GOSLI NS: If I could just follow up

on that for a second. Is it really, then, that
you're -- when, in effect, you' re doing there would
be circunventing the license terns, right? Not
necessarily the -- | nean, the access -- you're not

actually breaking the access control protections.
You're just circunventing the terns of the |license?

M5. GASAVAY: Yes. | mean, | guess it
depends on which way you look at it. Because of the
personal password situation, it's a little bit
different. Because ours apply to any nachine, no IP
address. It's personal.

M5. PETERS:. For certain use, right?

V5. GASAVAY: Ri ght. For educati onal
use.

M5. PETERS. Right, yes.
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M5, GASAVAY: Not only educational use,

| aw school use.
M5. QGOSLI NS: And are there other

okay, picking up on M. Coyle's point, which

is

something we've heard in several of these hearings,

that circunventing access controls is expensive and
time-consumng and difficult. And generally you
need sone design or sonme product or service that is
illegal to manufacture, design or produce them

At the risk of being argunentative, why
is this exenption inportant, then? If these
t echnol ogi cal protections are effective, if
realistically l'ibraries woul dn' t be abl e to

circunvent even if we were to exenpt all classes of

wor ks, what will a possible exenption give you?

M5. COYLE: R ght. And the reason why |

see that as being an argunent for the exenption

the fact that should a library get in the posit

is

i on

where it does have to dedicate the $250,000 and a

year's worth of developnent in order to circunvent,

it's because it was an extrenely inportant piece of

know edge that that library felt it was worth
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i nvesting the noney to preserve.

It's not that you can't do it, it's that
it has to be -- you have to match the value of what
you are preserving with what it's going to cost you
to get toit to preserve it.

DR VAI DHYANATHAN. And | would like the
Li brary of Congress to stand up for the principle.

M5. PETERS:. For the --

DR VAI DHYANATHAN: The principle of
preservation, the principle of first sale, the
principle of fair use.

M5. GOSLINS: Ckay. This is another
sort of broad question. Qovi ously, one of the
things we're looking at is to what extent materials
are available in alternative formats, and to what
extent they're available only in digital formats.

So I'm just curious. | don't nean
speci fic nunbers, but off the cuff, how nuch of the
material that you deal with in the operations of
your libraries is available only in digital form
and how nuch of it is avail able el sewhere?

M. CRONE: In the public libraries,
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often the databases that we buy are databases of
periodicals and that sort of thing that are --
they're also available in print. But we have to
make choi ces about which format we're going to buy,
because we can't afford to buy both formats.

So, it has beconme nore and nore popul ar
to buy themin electronic format because people can
access them from hone, or from the office, or from
wherever is convenient. Therefore, although they
may be available in two formats, we have to choose.
And we're choosing the one that we think is nore
conveni ent for people.

M5. GOSLINS: But, in general, the
formats -- you're choosing between two formats, and
in the day-to-day world it's also available in an
anal og format?

M5, CROVE: Yes. Oten. Not all the
tinme, but often.

M5. COYLE: Now, many of the e-journals
that we carry never were published in print, so we
do have many thousands of electronic journals that

are available only in this format. And, as you
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know, there's things like Hghwire Press that in the
academ c world, in academ c production of know edge,
that there is a consciousness of the need to both
provide these things electronically, and to preserve
t hem

And what we're finding is that consortia
and library agreenents are being devel oped so that
these things are being nmaintained for perpetual
access by some institution. Research Libraries
G oup has taken on that for sonme materi al s.

This is definitely true for the archiva
materi al s, because as people digitize archiva
materials, even though the archival nmaterial 1is
still there, it has a very |low possibility of use.

So when you have an archive of very rare
phot ographs, you cannot I|et people have access to
them Therefore, the digital product really becones
a functioning surrogate. And there is a great
consci ousness of providing perpetual use to those
material s. However, oftentines those materials are
materials that are owed by the library, and

therefore there isn't a copyright issue.
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M5. GASAVWAY:  And we certainly have sone
things in the big | egal databases that are avail able
in print. But we're also getting many nore
dat abases that do not exist in print, |ike EDGAR
with all the SEC material. Sonme of that does not
exist in print. If you' re in Washington and can go
by the Securities and Exchange Conm ssion, you can
get hold of sone of it. But sonme of it is just
sinmply not available to us.

The ERIC database is another one in
which there's a good bit of rmterial that's
avai l abl e only el ectronically.

M5. GOSLINS: Wiat is the nane? ER C?

V5. GASAVAY: The education database.
And until M. Peter’s colleague at the Patent and
Trademark O fice got right about publishing patents,
the only access to them was through an electronic
dat abase. But now they are avail able on the web.

The Bureau of Nat i onal Affairs is
creating all kinds of libraries, as they're calling
them of their materials. Li ke in Heal thlaw, which

will have a conbination of materials that are
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available in print, but a big chunk of their stuff
is not. And it is the bringing it together that is
making it val uabl e.

So I think we are on the upsw ng of
seei ng t hi ngs t hat are avai |l abl e only
el ectronically.

M5. GOSLINS: Ckay. Can | ask you a
very specific question? Do you renenber what
W tness it was that said that archiving is
irrelevant to society?

V5. GASAWAY. Yes. Ri chard Wi sgrau of
ASMP

M5. (GOSLINS: Al right. And | have
anot her specific question for you, Lolly. One of
your suggestions is that what you call fair wuse
wor ks shoul d be exenpted from the anticircunvention
prohi bition for, I bel i eve, l'ibraries and
universities, right? And in that group you include
t ext books and audio/visual and other educational
mat eri al s.

Does this create a simlar problem that

we saw in distance education, which is a proposal to
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exenpt works precisely in the markets for which
t hey' re desi gned.

M5. GASAVAY: Vell, renenber that that
applies only to works for which we already |awf ul
access. So if these are licensed work, we paid the
Iicense fee. It's just they exenpt them from the
anticircunvention provision.

M5. GOSLINS: And the initial access
point would be -- for instance, if you -- as an
exanple of that, if you purchased access to an
online database for six nonths, and then that six
nont hs ended. You would then, from that point on,
be exenpt ed from t he prohi bition of
anticircunvention because you had initial use?

MS. GASAVAY:. No. I think when you're
talking about a ternmed |icense period, it is only
for that period. | think it's only for that period.
I do not personally see how we could ever advocate
that -- you know, with a journal subscription now,
an anal og subscri ption, when you stop the
subscription you don't continue getting the vol unes.

So, | nmean, | think that the nove to the
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digital world is the sane thing with those. If you
paid for 12 nonths of access, that's what you get.

M5. GOSLINS:  So how would it work, that
if you had initial lawful access and it's an
audi o/ vi sual work produced for education purposes.
You would then need to circunvent the access contro
prot ections?

M5. GASAWAY: It's not that whether we
would need to, it's whether we would be liable if we
did do it. That's really the issue. W don't know

whet her we would need to. Suppose that it's one of

these timed ones that disappears? You know,
sonmething like that. And yet it's still within our
contract period of having paid for. Wiy should we

be liable for circunventing if we've already had
lawful initial access and the contract period has

not expired?

VS. GOSLI NS: I'"'m sorry that ['m
followwng up on this. | think 1I'm just still
slightly confused. | understand that exanple. That

seens |ike that exanple would, however, apply only

in situations where sonebody nmade a m stake and you
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weren't having access to sonething that you were
entitled to. That seens |like a pretty narrow
exenpti on.

MS. GASAVAY:. Wll, all | can tell you
is from ny own experience as a law librarian, and
that's the only one | personally dealt with so far.
So I don't know how rare it is, because there were
a bunch of us who had to deal with that.

M5. (GOSLINS: Ckay. And then | just
have one nore question for M. Vaidhyanathan,
sonething |ike that. One of the things vyou
mentioned, or you suggested as a criterion for
exenption is technologies that didn't deny access
based on editorial concerns. |'mjust curious. Are
t here technol ogi es now that do that, and are capable
of doing that?

DR VAI DHYANATHAN: So far -- I'm sure
they're all capable of doing that. Wen | get into
NYTi mes.com | have to enter ny e-mail address and a
passwor d. So far | have done nothing to justify
NYTi mes. com from keeping nme out, but there's nothing

to prevent them from keepi ng ne out.
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FBI

DR VAI DHYANATHAN: O, yes. What ever.

It's not inconceivable to think that certain sites

or databases would be willing and able to exercise

editorial control over access. You know, it would

be a very sinple way of regul ati ng readership.

MS. GOSLINS: But you're not aware of

anybody that does that now?

DR VAl DHYANATHAN:  No, |'m not.

MS. GOSLINS: Ckay. Al right. | think

| ' m done.

MB. PETERS: Charlotte?

V5. DOUGLASS: You said in pursuing a

little bit of t hat adverse effects, and

t he

difference between an adverse effect and a nere

i nconvenience -- well, if you can't get naterial
all but for circunvention, that's one thing

suppose you have t he ability i nst ead

at

But

of

circunmventing of digitally-encrypted work, to go to

12 other sources and get access.
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Wul d you t hi nk t hen t hat t he
availability of the work in 12 other areas would
nmean that that was an adverse effect, when you could
not get the digitally-encrypted version? O would
the availability that took you 12 tinmes as |ong nean
that that was a nmere inconveni ence?

["mjust trying to hone in on what's an
adverse effect and what's a nere inconveni ence.

M5. COYLE: Yes, and |I'm trying to
understand it. |"m not quite sure what it is. But
it sounds to ne |ike what you're talking about is
sonmething that cones up in the area of preservation
of hard copy works, which is that if your work is
deteriorating you don't immediately copy it. The
idea is that you're supposed to go out and try to
find out if you can reasonably get another copy.

And you seem to be saying that if for
some reason your digital access is broken, should
you be required to go out and try to find other
digital access before circunventing. |Is that --

M5. DOUGLASS: No, |I'm sorry | wasn't

cl ear. I"m trying to distinguish between, on the
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one hand, what is a real adverse effect and what is
a nere inconveni ence. For the reason that Congress
tells us that we are to consider things that are
adverse effects in trying to establish these
particular classes of works that are to be exenpted
for non-infringing use.

But Congress also tells wus that we
should not pay as nmuch attention to nere
i nconveniences. And so I'mtrying to decide whether
-- what are they tal ki ng about ?

M5,  COYLE: You're still trying to
define i nconveni ence, yes.

M5, DOUGLASS: What is an exanple of
t hat ? And so | canme up with an exanple that,
suppose you had a digitally-encrypted work but you
can actually get the same material by going to 12
other places, taking 12 times a |ong. Does t hat
nean that it's -- that the fact that you can go and
take 12 tinmes as long, that's a nere inconveni ence
or is it an adverse effect?

M5. COYLE: I think it's very hard to

sort of answer that question in the abstract,
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because it depends on whether or not that user 1is
actually going to continue to followup 12 tinmes as
long. O if that 12 tines as long is 12 days rather
than 12 seconds, which there's a big difference in
tinme.

And so there has to be sone kind of
concept of what it's reasonable to expect users to
go through, or for libraries to go through.

DR, VAl DHYANATHAN: And Ms. Dougl ass, |
have actually three observations about that subject.

First of all, if there were a condition, for
instance, that the researcher were on a heavy
deadline, then -- and an article is not going to get
published if he or she can't get that information
within 28 or 48 hours, that's a real effect.

Secondly, another real effect mght be
if the user is for instance, visually disabled and
has software available to —create an audi o
presentation of a digital work and is basically
unable to read or wunderstand printed text, then
that's a case of real harm

Third, | think it's very inportant to
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recognize that in the realmof First Anendnent |aw a
chilling effect is a real effect. And it wouldn't
be very hard to be able to cone up with exanples of
a chilling effect.

And then, for instance, just off the top
of ny head before | read this, when the anti-DSS
cases hit the press, sites that had DeCSS software
on them shut thenselves down before it was ever
litigated. In other words, they were protecting
thenselves. That is a real chilling effect.

M5. DOUG.ASS:. Thank you.

M5. GASAVAY: | think also that there
are works that are available only electronically.
So, clearly the adverse inpact or adverse effect is
there for those works. Your exanple of there are 12
ot her sources avail able says that going through the
decryption or whatever, would not be very tine or
cost-effective, except in the instances that Siva
just nentioned to you, or sonething |ike that.

But we do have to focus on the fact that
increasingly there are works that are going to be

available only digitally. And on those the adverse
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effect is clear

M5. DOUGLASS: One of the questions that
we asked in our Initial Notice was, speaking stil
of adverse effect, wth respect to any adverse
effect is there an explanation for the adverse
effect other than the presence of technol ogical
neasures that effectively control access to works.

That neans that but for the presence of
circunvention, is there -- was that adverse effect
caused, or could it be something else? Could it be
because of the licensing restrictions, could it be
for -- | know this is highly abstract and |I'm sorry
| can't give you a hard exanple of it. But we have
to sonehow try to link cause and effect here because
that's what Congress said to do.

So I want to know if there is, or if
there could be other reasons for the adverse effect
except for the prohibition on circunvention? Does
t hat make sense?

M5. GASAVAY: | think it does make
sense. | think, at least from ny standpoint, the

concern that we're going to see sone of the license
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restrictions on use converted to TPMs is really
where we focus. And where we really have to think
about, sure, sone of the concerns today are |just
pure |icensing concerns.

But if you can turn that contract into a
technol ogi cal protection that also protects not only
access, but wuse, you know, then it's too Ilate.
W' ve already lost the access to the work unless we
have the broad exenption from circunmvention.

M5. DOUGLASS: And your broad exenption
goes to fair use works and thin copyright works?

M5. GASAVAY: well, first we would

prefer that it be any work for which we have initial

MB. DOUGLASS: Lawful .

M5. GASAVAY: Lawful wuse, right. And
then in the alternative, if that is broader than
rul emaki ng can enconpass, we'd say that there are
these classes of works that are specifically unique
to higher ed. But we would al so hope that there was
a rule that said for particular circunstances there

woul d be the ability to bring other categories into
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t hat . And | use as the exanple filnms in a
filmraki ng school, or sonething like that, which are
not in those two categories necessarily.

M5.  DOUGLASS: Now, |I'm trying to
recol | ect. You said that classes of works is not
necessarily categories of works.

M5. GASAVAY: | didn't say that.

M5. DOUGLASS: OCh, you said that. Ckay,
|"m sorry. So this may be an unfair question, but
can you figure out how to get to classes of works
that are not categories of works according to the
| egislative history?

DR VAI DHYANATHAN: Vell, let's see. I
think you' re enpowered to read the word "categories"
as distinct from"classes.” And | think that you're
enpowered to do that because they are two distinct
words and two distinct areas of the code. I f they
had nmeant -- if the Commerce Conmmttee had neant
categories, it could and probably would have said
categori es.

What is a class of work? Well, you can

define a class of work functionally, and | think
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that may be the only reasonable way to do it. A
class of work is a work that is available in certain
ways and used in certain ways. And then it's up to
you to fill in the blanks what those ways are.

V5. DOUGLASS: Do you have any coment
on this, Dr. Gasaway?

M5. GASAWAY: |'"m pretty sure it's not
categories of works, because that's how I first read
it when the legislation was being drafted and trying
to figure it out. | think we've done the best job
we can with looking at those fair use works and
factual works. Suppose it could also be defined by
| ength of ternf

You know, we could say that after the
first so many years the work is no |onger sonething
that we need to worry about that for. | don't think
that will be very popular with copyright holders,
but you know, you're looking at different ways we
could cut across what's a class of work.

Ad stuff. That's a class. Bad stuff.

M5. DOUGAASS: add stuff is a class

particularly if the copyright term has already
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expi red.

M5. GASAVAY: Ch, then it's public
domai n. I'"'m tal king about old stuff that's still
under copyri ght.

DR VAl DHYANATHAN: But to articulate
clearly that itens in the public domain should not
be covered by the anticircunvention prohibition
because they're not covered under Section 107.

M5. GOSLINS: I think that's pretty
clear fromthe |egislation.

DR VAI DHYANATHAN: Vel |, okay. we' ||
see if it's clear in practice.

M5. DOUGLASS: Wiat's not so clear,
maybe, is public donmain material that is covered by
what some consider to be a thin veneer of
copyri ght abl e worKks. For exanple, an introduction
an index, a table, with all of these public domain
facts fromthe SEC. And you happen to be in Denver,
Col or ado.

So, are you advocating any particular
exenption with respect, possibly, to that kind of

mat eri al ?
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DR VAI DHYANATHAN. The only way | could
envision that working -- | wuld love to see an
exenption for the public domain material. I n ot her
words, no one should be able to prosecute ne for
circunmventing access to the conplete works of Mark
Twain on a protected CD-ROM for instance.

| would like that. However, | recognize
that the conplete works of Mark Twain are avail able
in several other forns, not enclosed, not protected.

So you may find too broad a definition on work
along -- or work against the principle of the
legislation in front of you.

V5. GASAVAY: Al so tal king about works
abandoned in the comercial market, which are fixed
and obsolete technol ogy. It's another «class of
wor ks that we could | ook at.

M5. DOUG.ASS:. Thank you.

Ms. Coyle, the summary of your statenent
refers to reformatting material, and the need for
circunmvention in connection with preserving nmateria
for archival purposes. Have you ever needed to

reformat audi o/visual works or the like for storage
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reasons?

For exanple, DAT or DVD format, to avoid
mai ntaining itens on nore space-consum ng nedia? Am
| making nyself clear?

MS. COYLE: Yes. W do nake copies of
everything that we receive, and this is part of our
I i censing. And we do copy -- | nean, we have data
going back to 1978, so I've had the privilege of
going through system upgrades and having to recopy
hundreds of thousands of files. So, yes, this is
sonet hing that occurs actually quite regularly.

M5, DOUGLASS: And you do it now as a
matter of a |license?

M5. COYLE: Right, right.

MS. PETERS: Is that sonmething that you
require in all of your l|icenses, or nmanage to get in
all of your |icenses?

M5. COYLE: You don't nmanage to get it
fromall of them no.

MS. PETERS: Ckay. What do you do when
you don't get it?

MS. COYLE: | talk to the people who do
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licensing, because | don't do that directly. You
know, | do the bits and bytes, other people do
I i censi ng. But | figured this question would be
asked.

What happens at that point is it seens
that we go into prolonged negotiations wth the
vendor. And we have had contract negotiations | ast
18 to 24 nonths until we reach an agreenent.

MS. PETERS: But you keep going for an
agr eenent . Maybe | should ask, what do you do with
your archived material? Does that becone the base
from which you serve, or is it nore |like a doonsday
kind of --

M5. COYLE: Yes. Actually, nost of the
mat eri al that we've archived is Dbibliographic
records. And those at |east were -- now they're
stored in Qakland and San Francisco. There was a

time when sone of them were stored in Nevada as

well, so that when California slid into the ocean
our data would still be there. Fortunately, that
hasn't happened. But yes, things are stored wth

the idea that we think we have to keep it forever.
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Now, | should nention about digital
preservati on, because I t hi nk there's sone
m sunder st andi ng about that. Which is that digital
preservation -- wth book preservation you wait 50
to 200 years, and as the book starts to deteriorate
then you preserve it.

Wth digital preservation you have --
preservation really begins on Day One. That
preservation is really a kind of preventive kind of
t hi ng.

VS. DOUGLASS: So vyou would not
necessarily advocate having an anticircunvention
exenption, because you would take care of it up
front? M5. COYLE: Vell, no. You
don't take care of it up front. The problemis that
-- | nmean, if | get a CO-ROM and data is on CD ROM
that data is protected. | can make a copy of that
CD-ROM the data is just as protected as it ever
was.

And, you know, | have no nore access to that new CD
ROMthan | did into the old one.

If | feel that that is data that | have
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to -- and that | have a right to keep in perpetuity,
| amgoing to want it kept in a format that | know
can get to in 10 years. And a copy of that CD ROM
is not going to do that for ne.

M5. PETERS: So, you put it what? \Wat
kind of format would you put it on?

M5. COYLE: It isn't just -- | nean,
you' re tal king about the physical format?

M5. PETERS: | nmean, obviously --

M5. COYLE: The physical format isn't
the question. The question is the data format.

M5. PETERS: Ri ght . But what does that
becone?

M5. COYLE: Depends on what kind of data
you have.

MS. PETERS: So what do you do for a CD
ROMto preserve it?

M5.  COYLE: Vell, it's a -- see, it
isn't a question whether it's COOROM it's what's on
it. So, for exanple, our standard for preserving
images is a certain level of TIF format. And if we

have inmages that we've received -- and again, nost
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of the imges that we receive are from our own
ar chi ves. So it isn't a question of having to
ci rcunmvent anyt hi ng.

But we have inmges that we receive. Ve
put theminto that format, because that's the format
we expect to be able to read in 20 to 30 years.

M5. DOUGLASS: I"'m going out on a linb
here. Dr. Vai dhyanat han?

DR, VAI DHYANATHAN: That's good.

M5. DOUGLASS: Al right. Your sunmmary,
the first to a broader picture of information
comment, and a shrinking of the public domain. And
you say that it's going to affect decision-nmaking
and creativity and hunor. And from the Ilack of
hunor here, that's a serious charge. So I'd like to
know if you can connect that really broad charge to
anyt hing regardi ng circunvention.

DR. VAl DHYANATHAN.  The connection woul d
be really clear under cases where copyright holders
exercised editorial control over access. The mnute
that starts happening, then certain classes of

peopl e get access to certain works or information,
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even data, if we're not careful how we wite these
rul es.

In which case, certain classes of people
woul d have nuch higher ability to manipulate public
di scussion and debate. And perhaps people,
economcally marginalized or socially marginalized
woul d not have access to central texts, ideas and
tenets of our society that mght be worthy of
satire.

And as a result -- | mean, in connection
to that, and I'mgoing to add this -- mght as wel
add it now, as long as there are no followup
questions about it, because | just |earned about it.

Cyber Patrol, the filtering software, the filtering
service, apparently had been suppressing speech. It
prevents you fromview ng certain places on the Wb,
for instance.

Apparently the encryption of the block
list was Dbroken. And as soon as activists
di scovered that Cyber Patrol was blocking sites not
particularly defined by its policy, Cyber Patrol

bl ocked those websites that carried the criticism of
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the policy. Does that make sense?

M5. DOUGLASS: Yes, it does. |'ve heard
it before.

DR, VAl DHYANATHAN: d ad you did.

M5. DOUGLASS: And | suppose there's not
been any simlar -- | guess we could call it adverse
effect. O has there been any action taken? Have

you heard, for exanple, that there's sone sort of a
parody of The Matrix on the Wb?

DR VAl DHYANATHAN: O The Matrix |

haven't heard. But | have heard about a parody of
an Elian GConzalez photo, for instance, that also
simul taneously parodied a major beer ad. And both -
- | guess people received cease and desist letters
as a result of this parodic manipul ation.

That's not a control over -- it's not a
technol ogical control over access to this stuff.
Nobody really has a problemwith access to Budwei ser
ads. If only we did. But it was a case where the
cultural power of the copyright system is used to
try to stifle parody and free expression.

M5. DOUG.ASS: Thank you for adding
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hunor to this testinony.

M5. PETERS: Thank you very nuch.

Rob?

MR KASUN C Good afternoon. &oi ng
back, there was a lot of broad concerns wth the
things that are probably outside the scope of the
technol ogi cal controls. And | think in some of the
coments, we've seen that there is a -- M. Coyle's
testinony that it's too early for any of us to nake
any definite statenments about sonme of this. And
al so Dr. Vaidhyanathan, that the potential for abuse
is there.

And also admtting that the fears are
specul ative and alarm st. That these are maybe
significant concerns, but it's not clear that we've
reached a certain point yet in the nunber of works.

In addition to -- Congress set up, in
addition to this triennial review that the Copyright
Ofice is enpowered to do every three years, that
Congress also in the legislative history anticipated
that the market would be a factor in controlling

this. That if controls got too tight, then the
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mar ket would conpensate, and that there would be
effects on that side.

And in addition, the Copyright Ofice is
there to review this at another point in tinme, if
some of these situations do get worse. |Is there any
evidence, in any of your views, that this is not
likely to be the case? That Congress was w ong,
that the market or that the pressure of know ng that
the Copyright Ofice would be reviewing this again
would not be enough to alleviate sonme of these
potential fears?

DR, VAI DHYANATHAN: The second concern
first. Yes, your triennial reviewis not likely to
have a direct effect on mtigating any of these
har ns. For the sinple fact that technol ogies and
devices will still be illegal. So once again, it's
the right without the ability.

Addressing your first concern, once
again a chilling effect is a real and tangible
factor in the way that the public and creators
interact with nmedia conpanies and the copyright |aw

system And any gap in understanding of the nuances
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of the Digital MIIennium Copyright Act in general
or the anticircunvention prohibitions specifically,
are not only likely to have a chilling effect, |I'm
sure that's al ready happened.

If you don't realize what your specific
rights are, chances are you're not going to exercise
any of your given rights.

MR KASUN C. Did anybody else have --
yes?

M5. GASAWAY: | should nention that we
have a little bit of concern about how the market
for education is being viewed, generally. And |I'm
not talking about just for materials that are
desi gned specifically for that market.

But as copyright holders talk to you
all, everything they tal ked about market seened to
be ainmed at an individual. You know, how are we
going to deal with getting access to these works in
the educational context, if everything is set up so
it's an individual who gets access? As opposed to a
license that we're dealing with now

And the market sinmply has not worked
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that well, when it conmes even to |icensing.
Especially sone of these works for entertainment. |
mean, |ook at the evidence we saw when we were
tal king about distance learning, even after the
school had purchased the work, being denied the
right to use it for distance | earning.

| know we shouldn't talk about that it's
too expensive, but I'm not tal king about that. But
quoted fees that nean you really don't use it. And
so I'm tal king about exorbitant, not just a little
on the expensive side. But which is clearly a way
of controlling what's going on in education. And |
think that's one of the concerns | have.

It's really the whole First Amendnent.
| mean, what are we going to be able to use for
t eachi ng? Especially wth things |ike cultural
st udi es. It's really a control on what is going to
be taught to your kids.

MR KASUN C. Well, then, | guess that
gets back to a comment that was raised before about
what is the purpose of the exenption in this, and

how wll this really help. Because if the market
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has not been doing its job in maybe restrictive

licensing, that's -- this exenption isn't going to
change that. And it's also not going to
have an effect on the technology itself. The

technol ogy can be as restrictive as anyone wants to
make it. All we can deal with in any potenti al
exenption is the prohibition on circunventing that

technology. So what will the effect of an exenption

be here?

M5. COYLE: | actually think that the
exenption will have an effect on the licensing and
contracting. Because | think that it gives a

nessage, and it gives a nessage that we expect
libraries to be providing information to the public,
and to be archiving the information. And | think
that it helps support what libraries are trying to
get into their licenses, which is the ability to do
just that.

MR KASUN C: Vell, then, in ternms of
the nmessage that is to be sent -- and there does
seem to be an interest in the Copyright Ofice in

sending sone kind of nessage here. But under
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certain restrictions on what kind of nessage we can
send. And we do have to identify classes of work.

In terms of how -- it was raised, going
back to the classes of works and the determ nation
of categories. Wre given in the legislative
hi story sonmething that did, to a certain extent, tie
this to the categories, where it was tal ked about
that, given exanples, that this could sonething
narrower or should be sonmething narrower than an
overall category of works, and not sonething I|ike
audi o/visual in general. But nore narrow as in
notion pictures, but maybe not so narrow as in sone
particular genre within there.

So how do we take this out of that area
of limting it to one particular category, to a
broad -- to having a class of works which spans a
nunber of different categories? One where we do
have this legislative history that does seem to
narrow t he scope a bit.

MS. GASAVAY: W gave you a bunch of
exanples in the testinony that | delivered, talking

about factual works and fair use works. And naned
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within those specific types that appear in different
categories in Section 102(a).

MR KASUN C Ckay. Wth the thin
copyrights, and that was one of the areas you tal ked
about in the types of work, with factual works. And
this is sonething that was raised with a nunber of
t he database owners and interests. That there is a
claim that this is sonmething that's covered under
Title 17. That while there is a scope of
protection is arguable, that it wmy not be as
conpletely as broad, that this is under Title 17.
And that the technology is controlling a work that's
protected by Title 17. How can we work with that
restriction, that it is sonething that's covered.
If the technology is covering both copyrightable
el enents and factual material, how -- and is not
differentiating between the two, is that sonething

that should be able to be protected under Section

1201?

M5. GASAVAY: | think it's relatively
easy to do it. You sinply would say that for
educati onal scholarly research purposes, even
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t hough those works are protected under the Copyright
Act, and because we've had lawful initial use, then
they are exenpted from anticircunvention for these
l'ibrary, education, scholarly and research uses.

DR VAI DHYANATHAN. And are you actually
tal king about, for instance, databases wth sone
original arrangenent and -- is that what your
question is about? So there's partial copyrighted
material on a particular database, but the data
itself -- which is not covered under the Copyright
Act -- but you're saying how can you help draw that
distinction, or what should you privil ege?

MR KASUNIC. Right. Wll, if we have a
technol ogi cal control measure -- that as long as
there is sone elenent that would be copyrightable,
that that can be applied to the overall work. Wile
that may contain public donmain elenents, do we open
up the -- certain copyrightable elenents? How does
an exenption differentiate between the two?

DR, VAl DHYANATHAN: You should err on
the side of public interest, you should err on the

side of factual availability and the free flow of
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information. You should, for instance, say that not
just teachers and scholars should have access to
non- copyri ghtabl e el enents of a particular work, but
all potential wusers should have access to that
i nformati on. Especially if it's the only place one
can get it.

MR.  KASUN C. So that would be a
restriction, then, on it. That if you have a
dat abase that's a sole source of that, and if this
was sonething that was available in sonme other form
then that would not be -- that would not fall under
t hat exenption?

DR, VAl DHYANATHAN: Wl |, once again,
you have to take into account accessibility for al
users. Users in Alaska, users who are visually
inmpaired, all of whom should have an equal ability

to mani pul ate factual information

MR KASUN C. Wll, | guess, M. Coyle,
that that was sonmething that -- raising about wth
the sole source. And it's unclear that this has

increased the benefits to society, having sone of

these in a digital format as opposed to if it's
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maybe available only in hard form That having sone
of these work available digitally has increased the
nunber of users and types of uses that are --

M5. COYLE: That sinply changed the kind
of use, although this has just begun and we don't
really know exactly where that's going. But | think
we're seeing a change, actually, in the type of
schol arship that takes place because of a new kind
of availability of information, which was previously
available in a different form

MR KASUNI C. And are you aware of
anybody who has | ooked into doing sone of -- you've
mentioned social inpact studies. And | know there
was sone interest in the Copyright Ofice doing
t hat . But is that something that is going to be
| ooked into by Ilibraries and other areas, to
determ ne what sone of these adverse effects are?

M5. COYLE: | don't know of anyone who's
really planning to do sonething that | would
consider to be a study of that type, no. [It's going
to take effort, it's going to take people' s tine,

it's going to take gathering together a group of
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experts.

MS. GASAVAY. | think I would worry a
little bit about -- talking about these databases
and things that are copyrighted. W' re not arguing
about the copyright status of those works, but that

the wveneer of copyright should not be wused to

bootstrap circunvention prohibition for all non-
protected material. | nmean, | think it's turned the
ot her way.

W' re sinply saying the whole point is
we've had initial |lawful access, so perhaps we've
had a |icense, whatever. These are thin copyrighted
wor ks and because of the use that we are making of
them in education, research. Tal king about
students, faculty, and Ilibraries. That because of
all of that, there should be an exenption in this
anticircunvention for that class of works, those
that have thin copyrights to begin with

DR. VAI DHYANATHAN: Access to a
copyrightable veneer of a database IS not
i nfringenment of a copyrightable veneer.

M5. GASAVAY: That's right.
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DR VAI DHYANATHAN: And it's really

inmportant that we not conflate use and infringenent.
O sonebody has to because Congress didn't.

MR KASUNIC. Well, just to clarify one
point, in terns of -- when you said that the initia
lawful wuse, or initial lawful access to a work --
and that's sonething that had been raised in sone of
the other testinony by Peter Jaszi and Arnie Lutzker
as well, about initial lawful access being a
criteria.

That access would then, | think in
Prof essor Jaszi's statenent that that was lawfully
acqui red work. So you're talking about this being
expanded to | awful access in terns of the |icensing,
but being restricted to the terns of that |icense so
that not -- okay. Just wanted to clarify that
Thank you.

M5. PETERS: Can | just follow on what
was Rob's question? |Is your focus on initial access
agai nst a pay-per-use nodel? So that you have to
sonmehow trigger a paynent, or another dine, whatever

it is, toget use -- to be able to look at it again?
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M5. GASAWAY: Not necessarily. It could
be that you took a bl anket |icense of sone kind. It
could be that you acquired it by gift. You know, |
nmean, when we |ook at works, you mght have
purchased it. If it's an outright purchase. So
it's sort of all of those ways one lawfully acquires
a work, whether possession or access to it.

MS. PETERS: Ckay. Let's say that you
got it by gift. And it has, what, an access control
such as a password. So you don't have that
password, but because it canme to you lawfully as a
gift, then you have the right to circunvent that
access control ?

M5. GASAVAY: Yes. Unless the Ilicense
to the person who acquired it initially required
that they not be able to give it away.

MS. PETERS: Right.

M5. GASAWAY: If their license did not
prevent that, | guess we could |ook at software
under 109(b)(2)(A), whatever those |ong nunbers are.
You know, the library and the education exenption

to the conputer software anendnents.
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Because we are allowed to give it away to another

educational institution.

So we give it to them they don't have

the password. Yes, they should

be able to

circunvent that. Because under the statute we're

allowed to give it away to them

M5.  PETERS: Take software as an
exanpl e.

M5. GASAVAY: Ckay.

MS. PETERS: Under software, you --
well, | won't say you. People, libraries have the

right to lend that software.
M5. GASAVAY:  Yes.

M5. PETERS: Is the softwar

e ever, like,

password-protected so that when the people get it

hone, they have a problemusing it?
V5. GASAVAY: " m probably

one to ask about that, Marybeth. [ 1

not the best

bet sone of

the people who are in other kinds of libraries -- in
law libraries we don't do nuch of that, |oaning
sof t war e.

M5. COYLE: Yes. It's not very -- so, |
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don't know. | nmean, | assune that if that's the
case, then you would, along wth lending the
software, you would have to give them the access
passwor d. Because otherwise they couldn't use it,
and why would you have lent it to them if they
couldn't use it?

M5. PETERS:. (Kkay.

M5. GASAWAY: So they could |ook at the

fl oppy.

M5. PETERS: Ckay. David?

MR CARSON: Well, follow ng up on your
second to last question. Prof essor Gasaway, and

really everyone, are any of you aware of cases --
and | think |I've heard one or two, but | just wanted
to get sort of a checklist in my own mnd of cases
in which technological neasures have restricted
access to works, beyond existing contractual
restrictions?

VS. GASAVAY: The only per sona
experience that 1've had is the one of the
di sappeari ng CD- ROM cont ent. That's the only one |

have personally seen to date.
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MR CARSON: Ckay. That was the Lexis
French dat abase?

M5. GASAWAY: No, that was the Westlaw
CD- ROM

MR CARSON: And that one, | think you
said, was a mstake, right?

M5. GASAVWAY: It was a m stake, but they
said it was a mstake. But we don't know whether it
was.

MR. CARSON: Did they correct it?

M5. GASAVAY: Yes, but it took them

seven weeks to correct it. So we were seven weeks -

VMB. PETERS: You had no access for seven

weeks?

M5. GASAWAY: W had no access for seven
weeks.

MR, CARSON. Ckay. Anyone el se aware of
any cases in which sonmething -- technol ogica

nmeasures restricted access beyond terns that were in
a license that you had?

DR VAI DHYANATHAN: The Cyber Patrol

NEAL R. GROSS
COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS
1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W.
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C. 20005-3701 (202) 234-4433




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

96

case would fall under that.

MR. CARSON: Ckay. Al right.

MS. COYLE: Vell, | still think it's
interesting because you're assumng that the only
time that people can't get in is when the technol ogy
deliberately is keeping them out. And | think we
can't assune perfect technol ogy.

And | think that the exanple that Lolly
gave is a very good one of that. Technology fails.

It actually fails quite regularly, and so it fails
even though you may still be within your contract.

DR VAI DHYANATHAN: A real fresh exanple
of that that just happened a couple of days ago
There's a new subscription-only website for nedia
critics and scholars called "Inside.com" It's
planning to charge $20 per nonth for an access fee,
and therefore it's going to be password-protect ed.

For their start-up they sent out e-nmails

to specific people on a specific list, saying "W're

going to give you a nonth of free access. G to
this page and register with us, and we'll let you
in" So | got the e-nmail, | went to the page, |
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registered, gave them all the information they
needed. And their link, their connect button was
not hot.

There was a glitch in the system so |
didn't have access to their information, even though
| gave them everything they asked for in our
contractual deal .

MR CARSON: Do you have any reason to
think that was anything other than a mstake on
their part?

DR VAI DHYANATHAN: No, no. Whet her it
was a m stake or not, their effect is the sane.

MR CARSON: Ckay. Let's take that
further, though. Because what we're tal king about
here is whether there should be classes of works
with respect to would you circunvent. And let's
assune we were to make a class of works as being
those works which, by mstake, access has been
deni ed you, even though you have a contractual right
to.

DR VAI DHYANATHAN: Yes. That woul d be

great.
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MR CARSON: I'"'m not sure that's an
appropriate class wunder the law, but let's just
assune that for a mnute.

DR, VAI DHYANATHAN. Well, it mght be an
essential class under the |aw Wien |1'm teaching
that class in 2035, and | plug in ny access code and
the film doesn't conme, it may not have cone because
of sonme evil intent.

MR. CARSON: Ch, | understand.

DR VAI DHYANATHAN:. It may have not cone

because of a m stake. And if | have a really
brilliant student who's willing to hack the system
right then and there to get ne in, | shouldn't be

prosecuted for lawful access to that film

MR CARSON Ckay, you've actually
started to answer ny question, anyway. Because the
question is -- well, first of all, let's have
another -- let's build another assunption in this.
Let's assunme, because no one thus far has had a
contrary experience, that when that access has been
denied by m stake, the content provider, once being

advi sed of that m stake, takes corrective action.
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It may take him a little while, but they do take
corrective action. Let's assunme good faith by the
content provider.

As a realistic matter, is the ability to
circunvent sonething that you could take advantage
of ? I mean, is it sonething that, when you have
encryption or whatever that is preventing you from
getting in there, t hat you could wvirtually
i nstant aneously circunvent anyway, quicker than it
woul d take the content provider who's acting in good
faith to correct the problenf

DR, VAI DHYANATHAN: It's inpossible to
predict. Because it's inpossible to predict the
| evel of technological expertise anong those who
seek access. And it's inpossible to predict the
| evel of technological barrier set up by the content
provider. |It's also inpossible to predict the chain
of communication it would require through any
conpl ex system to correct the situation. And ny
senmester m ght be over before Casabl anca pl ays.

MR,  CARSON Let's take the Westlaw

exanple that we did have. Do you have any reason to
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believe that you would have had neans to circunvent

that in a tinely way?

M5. GASAVWAY: No. The only way we could

have circunvented it is if another library had the

same title, and we just sinply copied it.
there was nothing on the CD We had j ust

CD.

Because

a bl ank

MR. CARSON. Ckay. Let's take the Lexis

French database. That's sonething that | assunme you

had online access to, and at sone point it just
di sappear ed?

M5. GASAVAY: That's right.

MR CARSON: ['m not sure how rel evant

it is, but do you know why it disappeared? Was

t here any expl anati on?

M5. GASAVAY: No, we don't.

MR. CARSON: Cay. Can you tell

a legal right to circunvent technol ogical

me how

access

control neasures would have prevented the problem

that you ultimately had?

M. GASAVWAY: It woul dn't have,

Davi d.

| was just, at that point, really talking about --
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you asked for exanples of what had happened so far.
That one was very fresh because of having happened
recently. Because there was no announcenent, no
expl anati on why, just one day it's gone.

MR CARSON: Ckay. |I|I'd like all of you
now to assunme for a nonent what nmay or may not be
the case. Wich is that we decide that we are going
to exenpt only those classes of works with respect
to which you can denonstrate that users have already
suffered serious adverse inpacts on their ability to
engage in non-infringing uses. Are you with ne so
far?

Ckay. In that case, can you tell ne
what those classes are, and what are the inpacts
that have already occurred that you can identify,
that would justify selecting those classes?

| guess |I'm asking you to tell ne what
classes there are with respect to which there have
al ready been those serious adverse inpacts.

M5. COYLE: What classes? Ckay, ask ne
that again. I'mlost. Wat classes?

MR, CARSON: First of all, the premse
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is that we will exenpt only those classes of works
with respect to which users have already had serious
adverse inpacts on their ability to nake non-
i nfringing uses.

M5. COYLE: In other words, we've had an
experience with this in the past?

MR. CARSON: Absolutely.

M5, COYLE: Onh, okay. | had under st ood
your statenent differently.

MR CARSON: Al right. If that's the
case, if the law says we can't exenpt a class unless
we' ve al ready nmade that finding.

VS. COYLE: There's pr oof t hat
sonmet hing' s al ready gone wong sonewhere, yes.

MR. CARSON: Yes. Then can you tell ne
what classes there wth respect to which that
condi ti on has been net?

DR VAl DHYANATHAN: Yes. There are
people who can't play digital video disks because
they didn't buy, perhaps even couldn't buy a
particular brand of digital video disk player.

Let's say, for instance, they have a conputer wth
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Linux running on it, and they want to play their
lawfully acquired digital video disk. Then, vyes,
that particular situation would cone up.

MR, CARSON. W expect to have sone |ong

conversations on that subject tonorrow Anyt hi ng
besides that? Ckay. Prof essor CGasaway, the first
class of works that you asked us to examne -- and
correct ne if 1've got this wong -- is works with

respect to the user has initially obtained |awf ul
possession, is that correct?

M5. GASAVAY: It's | awful access.

MR.  CARSON: Lawf ul access, okay. How
do you square that with the requirenment that we
identify a particular class of works? Is that a
class of works within the statutory meani ng?

V5. GASAVWAY: I think you have broad
di scretionary power here to acconplish that however
you want. And if you want to define the class as
that to which the user had initial |awful access, |
think you can do that.

MR CARSON: Vel |, you're a |aw

pr of essor. Wat do you find in the statutory
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| anguage or the legislative history that suggests we
have that much discretion?

M5. GASAWAY: | don't find anything that
says you don't.

(Laughter.)

MR CARSON: Fi ne. Let's nove on to

your class of fair use works. | happen to be a
strong believer in fair use. And | guess ny
question is, aren't all works fair use works? In

fact, mnmy experience is that sonme of the nost
interesting fair use cases, and the ones that | find
nyself believing nost strongly about are the cases
in which the work -- with respect to which fair use
is being nmade, are highly creative works.

MB. GASAWAY: Right.

MR CARSON: And if that's the case,
then are we exenpting everything?

M5. GASAWAY: Vell, | think we started
out by saying, "Look, for all of higher education
there are two groups of works that we think al
di sci plines use, and naybe have -- the equity's just

even a little stronger than anything else.” And
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that was those fair wuse works and the thin
copyright.

But we did say, in addition, we thought
that you mght think about witing a regulation that
woul d exenpt a work not in those categories, these
creative kinds of works. Because of the surrounding
context, like wuse of notion pictures in a film

school. Wiere we wouldn't say those are works that

would autonmatically fall into that fair use works
cl ass, because of the context they well mght. And
that's what | said, | think in higher ed we do not

differentiate between the types of works. You know,
we just don't. W consider an audio/visual work the
same thing that we consider a literary work. The
Copyright Act differentiates them but teachers do
not .

DR, VAI DHYANATHAN:. | also do think it's
inportant that we not be in a position to, for
instance, |icense teachers and professors to have
greater access to works than, for instance, ny nom

I mean, all users should have equal access to these

wor Kks.
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And therefore, actually comng up with a

notion of an actual -- |I'm afraid it's a category
rather than a class -- fair use works m ght disrupt
t hat . That's why |I'm not really on board with a

specific definition of a class of fair use works.
Al'l works are potential fair use works.

M5. GASAWAY: | don't agree with that.
Doesn't that gut the whole provision of the |aw?
You' re going to exenpt everything.

DR VAl DHYANATHAN: Yes, that would be
great.

M5. GASAWAY: And that's why | think we
said, you know, given our druthers, we would start
with this. But we also have to look at the fact
that classes of woirks did not nean the 102(a)
categories. \Wiat does it nean?

And there are different ways to cut it.
And we've nentioned date and sone other things.
But the ones that really nmade the nobst sense m ght
be those fair use and thin copyright works if you
cannot go as broad as looking at that initial |awful

use-- initial lawful access. | msorry.
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MR CARSON: Ckay. I'"d Iike sonme help
with ny legal analysis here, so |I'm going to
primarily look to you, Professor Gasaway, on this
one.

M5. GASAVWAY: Hot seat.

MR CARSON: This is a question of
interpretation of Section 1201.

M5. GASAVWAY: Ch, great.

MR, CARSON: Wen we -- let's assune
that we recommend that the Librarian exenpt a
particular class of works, and let's assunme that he
accepts that recommendation and exenpts it. Is it
your understanding that if a particular class of
works is exenpted, all users of that class of works
are entitled to circunvent technological neasures
that control access? O alternatively, only that
users who are engaging ultimately in non-infringing
uses are entitled to circunvent?

M5. GASAVAY: Now, I'm not able to --
like I can in 108 and 107 and 110 -- spit out the
sections w thout doing nuch | ooking. But | thought

that it said any class of works that are subject by
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-- non-infringing uses by persons who are users of
the work are who are likely to be affected.

So | think you can cut it different
ways. It could be everyone, it could sinply be
because of the public good of education and
libraries those uses are exenpted. | think you have
a lot of discretion there. Because | think it does
tal k about particul ar persons and users.

MR CARSON: Ckay. VWell, let's say we

decide that the databases are going to be exenpt,

and that's all we do. Because let's assune for a
nonent -- because | think this is probably the plain
reading of the statute -- that all the Librarian

does is say, "The following classes are classes |
designate as falling within those categories.”

So the ultimate regulation just says we
find the followi ng category, database. Wul d that
mean, in your view, that anyone can circunvent a
technol ogi cal neasure that controls access to that
dat abase? O would it mean, on the other hand, that
only people who are engaging in non-infringing use

of that database can circunvent?
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M5. GASAVAY: | think the words of the
statute say that non-infringing uses by persons who
are users of a copyrighted work. So |I'm reading
fromthe bible, and it says non-infringing uses. So

that's certainly nmy own interpretation, that it is -

M5. PETERS:. They're in D

M5. GASAVWAY: Pardon?

M5. PETERS:. You're reading D, right?

M5. GASAWAY: I'"'m reading D And |
really -- now, this may just be ny own foggy notion
of it, but all along |I thought that not only could
you define classes, but <classes for particular
users. That it did not necessarily have to be as
agai nst the public, generally. That would be great.

But it could also be against particular classes of
users, fromthe way |'ve read this.

But Ms. Peters and | were both at a
conference where we heard a copyright |aw professor
say not only would it be nice if the statute could
be read and understand by normal human beings, it

would be nice if it could be read and understand by
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intell ectual property professors, so--

DR, VAI DHYANATHAN: Cetting back to that
exanple, I'm not sure how one could infringe upon a
database. | don't think we've cone up wwth a set of
situations, wunless you're actually talking about
infringing the copyrightable portion of t hat
dat abase. MR. CARSON: Well, sure.

DR VAI DHYANATHAN: So, yes. So
exenpting databases woul d be an irrel evant exerci se.

MR. CARSON:  Well, | think the database
owners m ght disagree with you on that.

MS.  GASAWAY:. Yes. | disagree with
t hat . I think that there certainly are portions of
databases that are copyrightable and therefore
subject to infringenent. So that certainly could be
one.

| would be surprised if it would be
exenpted as against all wuses, because that would
al so include conpetitors for the database, rather
than those users for what are traditionally fair use
pur poses.

MR, CARSON. Professor Gasaway, you al so
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said that sone copyright owners have previously
testified in this proceeding that they intend to
nmerge access control nmeasures and use control
nmeasures. Did | get that right?

M5. GASAVAY:  Yes.

MR, CARSON: Ckay. Just a suggestion.
It would be very helpful for us if either when you
correct your transcript or in post-hearing coments,
if you could identify those particular people and
where in their testinony we could find that, you'll
save us a little bit of work.

M5. GASAVAY: We'l| do that.

MR CARSON. Ckay.

M5. GASAVWAY: Naturally, they didn't use
exactly those words.

MR CARSON: That's why it would help
for you to identify exactly what it was they said,
SO we can cone to our own judgnent as well.

Ms. Coyle, you said you' re not a |awer
and therefore you can't --

M5. COYLE: Definitely not.

MR. CARSON: Well, congratul ations.
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(Laughter.)

M5. COYLE: Thank you.

MR, CARSON. And that you can't describe
in legal terns what exenptions we can recommend, and
| can certainly understand that. But as soneone
who's out there in the field, struggling with these
i ssues, can you tell us as a practical matter what
kinds of things should be exenpted from this
anticircunvention provision?

Leave it to us to come up with the |ega
| anguage. You tell us the problem and what kinds of
works really are at risk here.

M5. COYLE: | think, as you've heard in
the other testinony, | can't think of a type of work
that isn't at risk. As long as it's digital and
it's protected, | believe it's at risk.

MR CARSON: Ckay. Pr of essor
Vai dhyanat han, you said that one of the types of
works you'd like to see exenpted woul d be works that
are not easily and wdely available in unsecured
formats. Can you give us concrete exanples of what

ki nd of work you're tal ki ng about ?
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DR, VAl DHYANATHAN: Let's see. Vel |,
this is a skinpy concrete exanple. There are
certain articles that are available only on the New
York Tines website, not available in the paper
pr oduct . If the New York Tinmes website were
protected conpletely, which it basically is password
protection at this point. Then, yes, that materi al
woul d have to be exenpted under ny nodel. Exenpt ed
fromthe anticircunvention provision.

MR CARSON Ckay. You're giving ne
what | think is really a hypothetical. Because you
started saying "if."

DR. VAI DHYANATHAN: Vel |, it IS
protected by a technological gate right now You
can't get into --

MR, CARSON: Whi ch anyone can get into,
havi ng done it nyself a nunber of tines.

DR VAI DHYANATHAN: Wll, you and |
aren't everyone. W don't know if everyone can, and
we don't know for how |long, and we don't know under
what conditions they still say yes or no. They' ve

only said yes, as far as your experience or ny
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experience indicates. But that doesn't nean they
can't or won't say no. And we haven't yet found the
person to whomthey' ve said no.

However, that is a technol ogical gate.
And circunventing it in order to get access to a
particular article that's not available in print
form shoul d be exenpt ed.

M5. PETERS: Ckay. I did sonething
brilliant. | went and let ny very able staff go
first, and I'm looking at all the questions that I
have. And actually | think alnost all the questions
that | had, 1've asked throughout or others have
basi cally answered them

So, | think maybe for nme | don't have
anything at this point. Does anyone else on the

panel have anything that they're dying to ask? No?

Ckay.
Let nme just nake a note. In the
proceeding | noticed at |east one person raising
their hand. And | didn't recognize that person

because this is a formal hearing in which people had

to give notice, and they had adequate opportunity to
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testify.

If there's anyone in the audience who
feels very strongly that they want to say sonething,
we do have another conmment period. And you
certainly can file comments by June 23rd.

| certainly would Ilike to thank the
W t nesses. You' ve been extrenely hel pful, and we've
kept you quite a while. So thank you very much.
And for those -- | see sone people who will testify
tonorrow. W hope to see you here. And anyone el se
who wants to conme. Thank you.

(Wereupon, at 4:18 p.m, the hearing
was adjourned, to be reconvened Friday, My 19,

2000, at 9:30 a.m)
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